
AGENDA 

MULMUR-MELANCTHON FIRE BOARD 
Monday, January 30, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 

ELECTRONIC 

1. Call to Order

2. Land Acknowledgement

We begin this meeting by acknowledging that we are meeting upon the traditional
Indigenous lands of the Tionontati (Petun) and Treaty 18 territory of the Anishinaabe
peoples. We recognize and deeply appreciate their historic connection to this place and we

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of board members, 
as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please enter the meeting 
ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting in muted mode.  

One tap mobile 
+16475580588,,84743861462# Canada
+17789072071,,84743861462# Canada

Dial by your location 
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 204 272 7920 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada
+1 647 374 4685 Canada

Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device) and with either digital audio or separate phone 
line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital address below into your search engine or 
follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when prompted.  

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 

1 of 34

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258


also recognize the contributions Indigenous peoples have made, both in shaping and 
strengthening our community, province and country as a whole. 

3. Approval of the Agenda 
 

Draft Motion: THAT the January 30, 2023, agenda for the Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board 
be approved as circulated. 
 

4. Approval of Previous Meeting’s Minutes 
 
Draft Motion: THAT the Minutes of the Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board dated December 
20, 2022, be approved as copied and circulated.  
 

5. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest 

If any member of the Board has a pecuniary interest, they may declare the nature thereof 
now or at any time during the meeting.   

6. Treasury 

a) Accounts 

Draft Motion: THAT the operating accounts in the amount of $15,537.79 be approved 
as presented.  
 

b) 2023 Budget 
 

Draft Motion: THAT the Board approve the 2023 budget as presented/amended. 
 

7. Administration 

a) Emergency Shelter (Verbal) 

Draft Motion: THAT the Board support designating the Firehall as an emergency 
shelter. 

b) Fire Chief General Update (Verbal) 

8. Information Items 

a) FMPFSC Certification Grant Award Letter 

2 of 34



b) Mulmur’s Procedural By-Law 

9. Adjournment 

Draft Motion: THAT we do now adjourn at ___________ pm to meet again on March 21, 
2023, at 7:00 pm or at the call of the Chair. 

3 of 34



MINUTES 

MULMUR-MELANCTHON FIRE BOARD 
Tuesday, December 20, 2022 at 7:30 p.m. 

Present: Earl Hawkins, Chair – Mulmur Township 
Ralph Moore, Vice Chair – Melancthon Township 
Kim Lyon – Mulmur Township 
Darren White – Melancthon Township 
Mathew Waterfield – Fire Chief 
Everhard Olivieri-Munroe – Deputy Fire Chief 
Heather Boston – Secretary 

1. Call to Order – meeting was called to order by the Secretary at 7:32 pm

2. Appointment of the Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary

Motion by: Lyon/White 
THAT Earl Hawkins be appointed to the position of Chair, Ralph Moore be appointed to 
the position of Vice Chair and that Heather Boston be appointed as the Recording 
Secretary. 
CARRIED. 

3. Land Acknowledgement

We begin this meeting by acknowledging that we are meeting upon the traditional
Indigenous lands of the Tionontati (Petun) and Treaty 18 territory of the Anishinaabe
peoples. We recognize and deeply appreciate their historic connection to this place
and we also recognize the contributions Indigenous peoples have made, both in
shaping and strengthening our community, province and country as a whole.

4. Approval of the Agenda

Motion by: White/Lyon
THAT the December 20, 2022, agenda for the Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board be
approved as circulated.
CARRIED.

5. Approval of Previous Meeting’s Minutes

Motion by: White/Hawkins

DRAFT

4 of 34



THAT the Minutes of the Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board dated August 25, 2022, be 
approved as copied and circulated.  
CARRIED. 

6. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest 
 

Chair Hawkins stated that if any member of the Board had a pecuniary interest, they could 
declare the nature thereof now or at any time during the meeting.   
 
No Declarations of Pecuniary interest were stated at this time. 

7. Treasury 

a) Accounts 

i. Motion by: Lyon/White 
THAT the operating accounts in the amount of $43,330.16 be approved as 
presented.  
CARRIED. 

 
ii. Motion by: Lyon/Moore 

THAT the capital accounts in the amount of $19,858.15 be approved as 
presented. 
CARRIED. 

 
b) 2023 Draft Budget 

 
• Discussed 2023 draft budget 
• Discussed MVC reimbursements and the cost to run a truck to a fire call 
• MVC’s can’t predict, sometimes can’t get reimbursed 
• Training costs are increasing 
• Discussed cost of bunker gear and hose fittings 

 
Motion by: Moore/Lyon 
THAT the budget be deferred until the next meeting to allow for further review. 
CARRIED. 
 

c) 2023 Capital Forecast 
 
Motion by: Lyon/White 
THAT the Board receive the 2023 capital forecast as information. 
CARRIED. 

DRAFT

5 of 34



 
d) 2023 Proposed Salary Grid 

 
Motion by: Moore/Lyon 
THAT the Board approve the 2023 salary grid as presented. 
CARRIED. 
 

e) Pumper Purchase 
 
Motion by: Lyon/White 
THAT the Board direct the Fire Chief to obtain three quotes through Canoe 
Procurement Group of Canada 
AND THAT the Fire Chief bring the quotes back to the Board for approval. 
CARRIED. 
 

8. Administration 

a) Draft Code of Conduct Policy 

Motion by: Moore/White 
THAT the Board approve the Code of Conduct Policy as presented. 
CARRIED. 

b) Draft Abuse and Neglect Policy 

Motion by: Lyon/Moore 
THAT the Board approve the Abuse and Neglect Policy as presented. 
CARRIED. 

c) Fire Chief General Update (Verbal) 

• New furnace and A/C installed 
• Breakfast with Santa at Firehall, huge success 
• 76 calls so far this year compared with 71 calls last year 
• Several firefighters have attended training such as Hazardous materials 
• New equipment coming into service (radios, gas defectors) 
• Completed an annual fire drill at arena 
• Pushing out a lot of fire prevention messaging, including radio ads 

 
9. Information Items - None 

10. Adjournment 

DRAFT

6 of 34



Motion by: Lyon/Moore 
THAT we do now adjourn at 9:00 pm to meet again on January 30, 2023, at 7:00 pm or at 
the call of the Chair. 
CARRIED. 
 
 
_________________________________   ________________________________ 

Chair             Secretary 

DRAFT

7 of 34



2022.10.31 8.0 9759 Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Departm 2023-01-27 11:51AM

Accounts Payable
AP operating Approval List Dec 20-31

Vendor 000000 Through 999999
toInvoice Entry Date 2022-12-31 2022-12-20 2022-12-31toPaid Invoices Cheque Date2022-01-01

Vendor Invoice Number Invoice Entry Chq Nbr
Number Name Item AmountAccount DateDateItem Description

MM FIRE - OPERATING REV/EXP
000345 WORKPLACE SAFETY & INSURANCE BOARD 12312022 2022-12-16 2022-12-30 000498

1,853.49
02-1094-5105

WSIB - 3483940 4TH QTR

090441 TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 39716 2022-12-13 2022-12-30 000497
59.15

02-1094-5112
NOVEMBER FUEL

000052 TORONTO DOMINION VISA (MW) 12052022 2022-12-28 2022-12-30 000496
233.51

02-1094-5114
TIMER/LIGHTS FOR XMAS

001363 HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 12092022 2022-12-09 2022-12-30 000492
366.48

02-1094-5117
DEC HYDRO

090994 TELIZON INC. 03500520221213 2022-12-13 2022-12-30 000495
117.50

02-1094-5120
ACCT#35005 - FIRE DEC

091194 BELL MOBILITY INC. 12132022 2022-12-13 2022-12-30 000491
26.52

02-1094-5120
DEC CELL PHONE

Account Total 144.02

000052 TORONTO DOMINION VISA (MW) 12052022 2022-12-28 2022-12-30 000496
41.79

02-1094-5142
HDMI CABLE/HDMI SPLITTER

000052 TORONTO DOMINION VISA (MW) 12052022 2022-12-28 2022-12-30 000496
27.10

02-1094-5142
HDMI CABLE

000052 TORONTO DOMINION VISA (MW) 12052022 2022-12-28 2022-12-30 000496
71.59

02-1094-5142
HDMI ADAPTER 5 PACK

000052 TORONTO DOMINION VISA (MW) 12052022 2022-12-28 2022-12-30 000496
62.13

02-1094-5142
HDMI SPLITTER 1 IN 2 OUT

000052 TORONTO DOMINION VISA (MW) 12052022 2022-12-28 2022-12-30 000496
204.26

02-1094-5142
INK/PENS

Account Total 406.87

090454 TD CANADA TRUST AUTO DEBITS 11302022 2022-11-30 2022-12-30 000494
25.00

02-1094-5146
NOV EFT S/C

Account Total 25.00

Department Total 3,088.52
Total Paid Invoices 3,088.52
Total Unpaid Invoices 0.00
Total Invoices 3,088.52

Page 1

8 of 34



2022.10.31 8.0 9759 Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Departm 2023-01-27 11:53AM

Accounts Payable
AP Operating Approval List Jan 1-27

Vendor 000000 Through 999999
toInvoice Entry Date 2023-01-27 2023-01-01 2023-01-27toPaid Invoices Cheque Date2022-01-01

Vendor Invoice Number Invoice Entry Chq Nbr
Number Name Item AmountAccount DateDateItem Description

MM FIRE - OPERATING REV/EXP
090908 RITCHIE, MARGARET 08 2022-12-29 2022-12-30 001092

2,385.00
02-1094-5114

CLEANING JAN TO DEC 2022

091202 ULINE CANADA CORPORATION 11368476 2022-11-21 2022-12-30 001095
566.91

02-1094-5115
ICE MELT/SCOOP/CARPET MAT/OPEN

000535 SHELBURNE HOME HARDWARE 373329/1 2022-12-15 2022-12-30 001093
80.34

02-1094-5115
HOOK/STRIPS/PROTECT SALT

Account Total 647.25

000080 STILLWATER CONSULTING LIMITED 0004479 2023-01-01 2023-01-13 001094
355.44

02-1094-5118
FLMS MONTHLY FEE 27 USERS

091185 R S RESCUE 1444 2022-12-12 2022-12-30 001091
2,260.00

02-1094-5118
OPER/TECH HEAVY VEHICLE RESCUE

Account Total 2,615.44

091175 USTI CANADA INC 370821/mm fire 2023-01-01 2023-01-01 001097
1,164.13

02-1094-5142
KEYSTONE ANNUAL FEE

090433 LARRY BYE MOBILE REPAIR 26918 2022-12-22 2022-12-30 001089
1,058.99

02-1094-5161
SAFETY/OIL-FUEL-AIR FILTER/OIL

091203 MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA (CANADA) INC DA0009166473 2022-12-13 2022-12-30 001090
1,670.03

02-1094-5161
TRUCK 41 TIRES

Account Total 2,729.02

091203 MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA (CANADA) INC DA0009166454 2022-12-13 2022-12-30 001090
2,493.80

02-1094-5164
TRUCK 44 TIRES

090433 LARRY BYE MOBILE REPAIR 26910 2022-12-21 2022-12-30 001089
414.63

02-1094-5165
SAFETY/GREASE/REAR DOOR FIX

Account Total 414.63

Department Total 12,449.27
Total Paid Invoices 12,449.27
Total Unpaid Invoices 0.00
Total Invoices 12,449.27

Page 1

9 of 34



updated Jan 27, 2023 YTD FINAL YTD FINAL DRAFT #1 DRAFT #2 %

2021 ACTUAL 2021 BUDGET 2022 ACTUAL 2022 BUDGET 2023 Budget 2023 Budget VARIANCE Share

Revenue
02‐1094‐4000 MM FIRE‐CALL REVENUE  31,421$          20,000$          11,804$          20,000$          12,000$          12,000$         (8,000)       

02‐1094‐4010 MM FIRE‐DONATIONS ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1094‐4020  MM FIRE‐OTHER REVENUE  ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1094‐4030 MM FIRE‐INTEREST EARNED ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1094‐4130  MM FIRE‐OP REV MELANCTHON  39,952.92       49,842.72       44,255.37       50,500.44       55,869.64       55,455.24     4,955          23.68% 2023

OPERATING SURPLUS MELANCTHON (9,889.80)        ‐                   (6,245.07)        (885.54)           (885.54)          5,360          23.68% 2022

02‐1094‐4230 MM FIRE‐OP REV MULMUR    119,717.60     154,598.28     143,391.07     162,761.56     180,066.36     178,730.76   15,969        76.32% 2023

OPERATING SURPLUS MULMUR (34,880.68)      ‐                   (19,370.49)      (2,854.08)        (2,854.08)      16,516        76.32% 2022

02‐1094‐3001  MM FIRE‐PR YR'S OPERATING SURPLUS  44,770.48       44,770.48       25,615.56       25,615.56       3,739.62         3,739.62        (21,876)     

02‐1094‐4310 MM FIRE‐TSFR FM OPERATING RESERVES ‐             

Total Operating Revenue 235,862$       224,441$       225,066$       233,262$       247,936$       246,186$      12,924       

Expenses
02‐1094‐5100  MM FIRE MANAGEMENT SALARIES  32,996$          35,500$          33,463$          36,210$          37,300$          37,300$         1,090           based on pay grid 

02‐1094‐5101  MM FIRE FIREHALL TRAINING & DUTY WAGES  31,578$          36,000$          27,546$          36,000$          36,000$          36,000$         ‐             
based on pay grid, can vary yr 

to yr

02‐1094‐5102  MM FIRE FIRE CALL WAGES  18,133$          27,000$          26,640$          27,000$          27,810$          27,810$         810            
based on pay grid, can vary yr 

to yr

02‐1094‐5103  MM FIRE EXTERNAL TRAINING WAGES  1,496$            5,000$             9,733$            7,500$             9,000$             9,000$           1,500         
based on actual now that fire 

collage has been closed

02‐1094‐5104 MM FIRE EMPLOYER HEALTH TAX  852$                1,000$             904$                1,000$             1,000$             1,000$           ‐             

based on actuals & 3%  wage 

increase

02‐1094‐5105 MM FIRE WORKERS COMPENSATION  7,404$            6,100$             5,193$            6,100$             6,100$             7,700$           1,600         
one time credit rec'd in 2022, 

w/o cr $7700 in 2022

02‐1094‐5109  MM FIRE SECRETARIAL DUTIES  2,000$            2,000$             2,000$            2,000$             2,000$             2,000$           ‐              fixed cost

02‐1094‐5110  MM FIRE SELF CONT BREATH APP (SCBA'S)  3,634$            3,000$             3,806$            3,000$             4,000$             4,000$           1,000         
based on actuals, costs are 

increasing

02‐1094‐5112  MM FIRE VEHICLE FUEL  3,896$            3,700$             3,213$            3,700$             3,700$             3,700$           ‐             
Fuel cost were up and can vary 

drastically

02‐1094‐5114  MM FIRE BLDGS & GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 6,370$            5,000$             7,273$            5,000$             6,000$             6,000$           1,000          upgrade lights

02‐1094‐5115  MM FIRE MATERIALS/SUPPLIES  4,153$            6,000$             583$                6,000$             ‐$                 ‐$               (6,000)        reallocated to other accts

02‐1094‐5116  MM FIRE RADIO PURCHASES & REPAIRS 2,616$            4,000$             2,293$            4,000$             4,000$             4,000$           ‐             

can vary depending on repair 

needs and costs to purchase 

radios

02‐1094‐5117  MM FIRE HYDRO  4,991$            5,250$             4,557$            5,250$             5,250$             5,000$           (250)           

Based on actuals, switching to 

timers and LED lighting, expect 

to see decreases unless rates 

go up.

02‐1094‐5118  MM FIRE TRAINING COURSES  5,740$            6,000$             13,050$          8,500$             12,000$          12,000$         3,500         
based on actual now that fire 

collage has been closed

02‐1094‐5119  MM FIRE DUES, FEES & SUBCRIPTIONS 309$                410$                584$                410$                584$                1,384$           974            
Added Training Officers Assoc, 

Medicals for DZ licence

02‐1094‐5120  MM FIRE COMMUNICATIONS  18,251$          17,500$          16,436$          17,500$          17,500$          17,500$         ‐             

Dispatch, cell phone, hall 

phone, GPS on trucks, who's 

responding

02‐1094‐5121  MM FIRE MISC (AWARDS‐STATION WEAR) 365$                2,500$             2,152$            3,000$             3,000$             3,000$           ‐              Hats, shirts, service awards

02‐1094‐5122  MM FIRE TREASURERS EXPENSE  10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$         ‐              fixed cost

02‐1094‐5123  MM FIRE PREVENTION/INSPECTIONS ‐$                300$                229$                300$                1,000$             1,000$           700            
fire prevention packages, 

smoke alarm program

02‐1094‐5124  MM FIRE PROPANE  6,836$            5,700$             6,504$            5,700$             5,700$             7,000$           1,300         
based on actuals, propane 

costs are on the rise

02‐1094‐5125  MM FIRE AUDIT  2,340$            2,341$             2,442$            2,442$             2,442$             2,442$           ‐              per quote

02‐1094‐5130 MM FIRE ASSET MANAGEMENT  809$                500$                810$                810$                810$                810$              ‐              based on costs

02‐1094‐5134  MM FIRE INSURANCE  13,634$          20,000$          15,130$          20,000$          17,000$          17,000$         (3,000)        based on estimate

02‐1094‐5140  MM FIRE TRAVEL ‐$                ‐$                 2,371$            ‐$                 5,000$             3,000$           3,000          mileage for training

02‐1094‐5141  MM FIRE MEALS 393$                650$                602$                650$                650$                650$              ‐              while on fire calls

02‐1094‐5142  MM FIRE OFFICE/COMPUTER SUPPLIES  3,531$            2,000$             3,561$            2,000$             3,000$             3,000$           1,000         
computers, MS emails 

subscriptions, Keystone

02‐1094‐5143  MM FIRE MEDICAL SUPPLIES  1,032$            1,000$             81$                  1,500$             1,000$             1,000$           (500)           

Low in 2022 b/c obtained free 

supplies from Province due to 

COVID, did have as many calls 

so didn't use as many supplies

02‐1094‐5144  MM FIRE EQUIP REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 3,637$            1,500$             1,147$            1,500$             2,000$             3,000$           1,500         
Batteries, signs, jaws of life 

mtn $2500 bi‐annually

02‐1094‐5145 MM FIRE‐MTO REPORTS 350$                300$                (14)$                400$                300$                300$              (100)           
Dependant on number of 

reports pulled

02‐1094‐5146 MM FIRE BANK CHARGES 377$                440$                271$                340$                340$                340$              ‐             
can vary depending on 

transactions

02‐1094‐5150 MM FIRE IT SUPPORT ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 500$              500            

02‐1094‐5160 MM FIRE ‐ EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES 1,696$            500$                2,411$            1,700$             7,200$             2,500$           800             Anything for vehiciles, hose

02‐1094‐5161 MM FIRE ‐ PUMPER #41 1999 FREIGHTLINER 9,362$            3,500$             4,215$            3,500$             5,000$             5,000$           1,500         
Needs repairs to get it through 

until replace purchased

02‐1094‐5162 MM FIRE ‐ 2020 FORD RESCUE #42 1,498$            1,000$             873$                1,500$             2,000$             1,500$           ‐             

02‐1094‐5163 MM FIRE ‐ TANKER #43 2020 FREIGHTLINER 1,541$            2,000$             4,966$            2,000$             2,000$             2,000$           ‐             

02‐1094‐5164 MM FIRE ‐ PUMPER #44 2009 SPAR 7,102$            5,000$             5,796$            5,000$             5,500$             6,000$           1,000          Needs major repair

02‐1094‐5165 MM FIRE ‐ 2006 TRAILER (RME) 915$                1,000$             506$                1,000$             1,000$             1,000$           ‐             

MULMUR MELANCTHON FIRE DEPARTMENT

10 of 34



updated Jan 27, 2023 YTD FINAL YTD FINAL DRAFT #1 DRAFT #2 %

2021 ACTUAL 2021 BUDGET 2022 ACTUAL 2022 BUDGET 2023 Budget 2023 Budget VARIANCE Share

MULMUR MELANCTHON FIRE DEPARTMENT

02‐1094‐5166 MM FIRE ‐ ARGO 408$                750$                ‐$                750$                750$                750$              ‐             

Total Operating Expenses 210,247$       224,441$       221,326$       233,262$       247,936$       246,186$      12,924        5.54%

‐             

Operating Surplus (deficit) 25,616$         ‐$                3,740$            ‐$                ‐$                ‐$              ‐             

CAPITAL REVENUE
02‐1095‐4010 MM FIRE‐CAPITAL DONATIONS ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1095‐4030 MM FIRE‐INTEREST EARNED 1,029$            1,500$             6,371$            1,000$             1,000$             1,000$           ‐             

02‐1095‐4040 MM FIRE‐CAPITAL GRANT REVENUE 5,400$            ‐$                 4,272$            ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1095‐4050 MM FIRE‐SALE OF VEHICLE ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1095‐4060 MM FIRE‐SALE OF EQUIPMENT ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1095‐4140 MM FIRE‐CAP REVENUE MELANCTHON 58,750$          58,750$          62,500$          62,500$          72,500$          72,500$         10,000       

02‐1095‐4240 MM FIRE‐CAP REVENUE MULMUR 58,750$          58,750$          62,500$          62,500$          72,500$          72,500$         10,000       

02‐1095‐4300 MM FIRE‐TSFR FROM CAPITAL RESERVES 22,786$          21,286$          7,532.43         17,721$          17,000$          17,000$         (721)           

Total Capital Revenue 146,715$       140,286$       143,175$       143,721$       163,000$       163,000$      19,279       

CAPITAL EXPENSES ‐             

02‐1095‐5200  MM FIRE CAPITAL PURCHASES 29,215$          22,786$          18,175$          18,721$          18,000$          18,000$         (721)           

02‐1095‐5300  MM FIRE TSF TO CAPITAL RESERVES  117,500$        117,500$        125,000$        125,000$        145,000$        145,000$       20,000       

146,715$        140,286$        143,175$        143,721$        163,000$        163,000$       19,279        13.41%

Capital Surplus (deficit) ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$             

CAPITAL BUDGET

11 of 34



 
 
 
Jan 3rd, 2023 
 
Matthew Waterfield, Fire Chief  
Mulmur/Melancthon Fire Department 
 
Dear Chief Waterfield, 
 
On behalf of the Fire Marshal’s Public Fire Safety Council (FMPFSC), I am pleased to 
inform you that your department has been selected to receive funding part of the FMPFSC 
Certification Grant. 
 
This grant provides select provincial fire departments with funding to support the 
purchasing of firefighter training and educational materials to assist with the certification 
requirements as part of O.Reg.343/22 (Firefighter Certification). This is the first year of 3 
that the grant will be offered in Ontario.       
 
As a recipient of this year’s grant, your department will receive $ 1051.38 to be used 
towards the purchase of educational materials offered by both IFSTA and Jones and 
Bartlett.  Attached is an overview of the materials that are available as part of this program 
which are aligned with the certification levels contained in the regulation.  The funds must 
be used by February 10, 2023 so that the FMPFSC can ensure proper audit of the grant 
before the end of its fiscal year.    
 
What’s Next? 
 
Beginning Jan 5th contact Emily Folco at Emily.folco@firesafetycouncil.com or 1866-379-6668 
ext 100 to place your order or for assistance with selecting your training materials. We 
ask that all orders be placed by Feb 10th 2023.   

 
Supporting the fire service and providing this grant to support certification in Ontario is a 
priority for the FMPFSC and we are honoured to be able to allocate this funding to your 
department. 
 
If you have any questions do not hesitate to reach out to me directly.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Jamie Kovacs 
Executive Director 
 

 

12 of 34

mailto:Emily.folco@firesafetycouncil.com


TOWNSHIP OF

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR

BY-LAW NOSf - 2022

BEING A BY.LAW TO GOVERN THE PROCEEDINGS OF COUNCIL AND
ITS COMMITTEES

WHEREAS The Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, ('Act') provides that every
municipality shall adopt a procedural by-law for governing the calling, place and
proceedings of meetings, and provide for public notice of meetings;

AND WHEREAS it is necessary and expedient to enact rules governing the order and
procedure of the Council and its meetings;

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF
MULMUR ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

GENERAL

1.0 RULES OF PROCEDURE

The proceedings of the Council and its committees, the conduct of the
members and the calling of meetings shall be governed by the provisions
of the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, c.25 as amended and the rules and
regulations contained in this by-law.

1.1 Except as provided herein, the rules of parliamentary procedure as
contained in Robert's Rules of Order shall be followed for governing the
proceedings of Council and its committees and the conduct of its
members.

1.2 Where separate by-laws have been enacted in accordance with provisions
contained in the legislation, the notice provisions set out in such by-laws
shall prevail.

Nothing in this by-law shall prevent the Clerk from using more
comprehensive methods of notice or providing for a longer notice period.

1.3

13 of 34



2.0 INTERPRETATION

2.1 Wherever this by-law refers to a person or thing with reference to gender
or the gender neutral, the intention is to read the by-law with the gender
applicable to the circumstances.

2.2 References to items in the plural include the singular, as applicable.

The words "include", "including" and "includes" are not to be read as
limiting the phrases or descriptions that precede or follow them.

2.3

2.4 Headings and the index are included for ease of reference only and are
not to be used as interpretation aids.

2.5 Specific references to legislation in this by-law are meant to refer to the
current laws applicable within the Province of Ontario as at the time the
by-law was enacted, as they are amended from time to time. ln all cases,
the reference includes the statute, as amended from time to time, including
successor leg islation.

3.0 DEFINITIONS

Act - means the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001 , c.25 as amended

Geremonial Presentation - means the giving of an award, prize or other
form of recognition by the Chair at a Council meeting.

Chair - means the Head of Council or Acting Head of Council or
chairperson of any committee.

Clerk - means the Clerk, or his or her designate

Gommittee - means a Committee of Council, Board, Task Force, and/or
Working Group constituted and appointed by Council, excluding Joint
Committees and/or legislated Boards that have their own policies and
procedures.

Committee of the Whole - means a committee comprised of all members
that directly report back to the Committee or Council that it is comprised of.

Gonsent Agenda - means the portion of the agenda that may be
approved by Councill without debate.

Council - means the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Mulmur.

14 of 34



Council Meeting - means meetings set out in this by-law to be held on a
regular basis.

Closed Session - means a meeting or portion thereof which is closed to
the public in accordance with the Act.

Deputation - means a person or group of persons who are not members
of Council or staff of the Municipality who have requested and are
permitted to address Council or a Committee.

Ex Officio - means by virtue of Office and refers to the position of Mayor

Head of Council - means the Mayor

Majority Vote - means an affirmative vote of more than one-half of the
votes cast by those present.

Meeting - means any regular, special or other meeting of Council or
Committee where quorum of members are present and members discuss
and/or deal with any matter in a way that materially advances the business
or decision-making of the Council or Committee.

Member - means a member of Council, including the Mayor, or a member
of a Committee, including the Chair.

Notice of Motion - means a written motion received by the Clerk at a
meeting of Council, moved by a member, and seconded by another
member, for inclusion on an agenda of a subsequent meeting of Council.

Notice - means publicly displaced electronic, or printed communication
that includes the time and place of a meeting and, in the instance of a
Special Meeting, shall include the purpose of the meeting and whether the
meeting was called by the Head of Council or Clerk.

Point of Order - means a statement made by a member of Council during
a meeting, drawing the attention of the Chair to a breach of the Procedural
By-Law.

Point of Privilege or Personal Privilege - means raising a question
concerning a member of Council, or the Council collectively, when a
member believes that their rights, immunities or integrity or the rights,
immunities or integrity of Council as a whole, have been impugned.

Presentations - means a verbal and/or visual provision of information to
Council by an individual, community group of organization.

15 of 34



Quorum - means a majority of the members (more than half) of the whole
number of members except where a member has or members have
declared a pecuniary interest pursuant to the Municipal Conflict of lnterest
Act, at which time the quorum may be less than half plus one of the whole
number of members but shall not be less than two.

Recorded Vote - means a written record of the name and vote of every
member voting on any matter or question.

Resolution - means the decision of Council on any motion

Special Meeting - means a meeting called under Section 2a0 @) or (b) of
the Acf, having the same privileges as a Council Meeting.

DUTIES AND CONDUCT

4.0 DUTIES OF THE CHAIR

4.1 lt shall be the duty of the Chair to

a) open the meeting by taking the chair and calling the meeting to order;
b) announce the business in the order in which it is to be acted upon;
c) receive and submit, in the proper manner, all motions presented by the

members;

d) put to vote all questions which are duly moved and seconded, or
necessarily arise in the course of proceedings and to announce the
result;

e) decline to put to vote motions which infringe the rules of procedure;
f) run the meeting efficiently and effectively, restraining the members,

within the rules of order, when engaged in debate;
g) enforce on all occasions the observance of order and decorum among

the members;
h) receive all messages and other communications and announce them

to the members;
i) authenticate, by signature when necessary, all by-laws and minutes;
j) inform the members when necessary or when referred to for the

purpose, on a point of order;
k) represent and support the members, declaring its will, and implicitly

obeying its decisions in all things;
l) ensure that the decisions are in conformity with the laws and by-laws

governing the activities;
m) adjourn the meeting when the business is concluded, to adjourn the

meeting without question in the case of grave disorder arising.

5.0 DUTIES OF MEMBERS

16 of 34



5.1 lt shall be the duties of members to

a) deliberate on the business before it;
b) vote when a motion is put to a vote;
c) respect the Rules of Procedure.

6.0 lt shall be the duties of Council to

a) represent the public and to consider the well-being and interests of the
municipality;

b) develop and evaluate the policies and programs of the municipality;
c) determine which services the municipality provides;
d) ensure that administrative policies, practices and procedures and

controllership policies, practices and procedures are in place to
implement the decisions of Council;

e) ensure the accountability and transparency of the operations of the
municipality, including the activities of the senior management of the
municipality;

f) maintain the financial integrity of the municipality;
g) carry out the duties of Council under this or any other Acf.

7.O CONDUCT OF MEMBERS

7.1 Members shall govern themselves according to the Council Code of
Conduct adopted by Council during a meeting held pursuant to this by-law.

7.2 No member in an open meeting or Closed Session, shall speak
disrespectfully of the Reigning Sovereign, or any of the Royal Family, or of
the Governor-General, the Lieutenant-Governor of any province, of any
Member of the Senate, the House of Commons of Canada or the
Legislative Assembly of the Province of Ontario.

7.3 No member shall

a) in an open meeting or Closed Session, use offensive words or un-
parliamentary language in or against the Council or against any
Member, staff or guest;

b) speak on any subject other than the subject in debate;
c) criticize any decision of the Council or continue to debate the matter

after it has been decided, except for the purpose of moving that the
question be reconsidered;

d) disobey the Rules of Procedure or a decision of the Chair or of the
Council on questions of order or practice or upon the interpretation of
the rules of the Council.

e) disclose any information that is deemed to be confidential pursuant to

17 of 34



the Municipal Freedom of lnformation and Protection of Privacy Act;
f) display any offensive or partisan political material, including buttons.
g) knowingly be absent or leave a meeting without notifying the Clerk,

preferably in writing.

8.0 PUBLIC CONDUCT

8.1 Members of the public who constitute the audience at a meeting, shall not

a) address Council or Committee address without permission;
b) approach the desks of Council or Committee members during a

meeting without permission of the Chair or Members;
c) bring signage, placards or banners into such meetings and refrain

from any activity or behaviour that would affect the Council or
Committee deliberations;

d) enter the meeting room without first removing any non-religious or
non-medical head gear;

e) shall put on silence all electronic devices.

9.0 EXPULSION FOR MISCONDUCT

9.1 The Chair may cause to be expelled and exclude any member of the
public, or group of persons in attendance at a meeting who creates any
disturbance or acts improperly, during a meeting of Council or Committee.
lf necessary, the Chair may call upon the Clerk seek the appropriate
assistance from police.

9.2 Where a member persists in any disobedience of the Rules of Procedure
after having been called to order by the Chair, the Chair shall forthwith put
the question, no amendment, adjournment or debate being allowed, "That
such Member be order to leave his/her seat for the duration of the meeting
of the Council", but if the Member apologizes he/she may be permitted to
retake his/her seat.

MEETINGS

1O.O INAUGURAL MEETING

10.1 The first meeting of a newly elected Council after a regular election shall
be held at a time and location determined by the Clerk.

10.2 At the lnaugural meeting of the Council, the only business to be brought
before the meeting shall be the following:

a) Declarations of Office;
b) lnaugural Address by the Head of Council;

18 of 34



c) Matters incidental to any of the above.

11.0 COUNCIL SEATING AND ORDER OF NAMES

11.1 The following is the order of seating for Council meetings, and the listing
placement of the names on all Township documents:

a) Mayor in the centre (listed on documents first)
b) Deputy Mayor to the Mayor's right (listed on documents second)
c) Longest serving Council member to the Mayor's left. lf there is more

than one Council member serving with equal length of service, the
highest vote count received at the last election or by alphabetic order if
more than one Councillor has served the same amount of time and
these were both acclaimed (listed on documents third)

d) To the right of the Deputy Mayor the Council member that receives the
highest vote count of the remaining two Councillors or alphabetic if the
remaining two are acclaimed (listed on documents fourth)

e) To the left of the longest serving Council member the Council member
that receives the lowest vote count of the remaining two Councillors
(listed on documents fifth)

12.0 REGULAR MEETINGS

12.1 Regular meetings of Council shall be held on the first Wednesday of each
month at 9:00 A.M., except for December and January which shall be the
second Wednesday.

12.2 A second regular meeting of Council may be held during each month as
required.

12.3 Meetings of the Council shall generally be held at the Council Chambers
located at 7580702nd Line East, electronically, or at such other place as is
specified in the agenda.

12.4 All Council and Committee meetings shall be open to the public.

12.5 Public notice of meetings shall be given for all meetings by means of the
municipal website

12.6 Notice for meetings not scheduled in the original calendar of meetings
outlined in section 11, will be at the discretion of the Clerk and using
communication channels as appropriate.

12.7 lf no quorum is present 15 minutes after the time appointed for a meeting
of Council or a Committee, the Clerk shall record the names of the

19 of 34



members present and the meeting shall stand adjourned until the date of
the next meeting.

12.8 As soon after the hour fixed for the holding of the meeting as a quorum is
present, the Chair shall call the meeting to order.

12.9 Subject to the provisions of Act and where no Presiding Officer has been
appointed, in case the Chair does not attend within 15 minutes after the
time appointed for a meeting, or he/she refuses to act, the Clerk shall call
the members to order and the Deputy Mayor and/or Vice Chair shall
preside until the arrival of the Chair, and while so presiding shall have all
the rights, powers, and authority of the Chair.

12.10 No item of business may be dealt with at a Council meeting after 4:30 pm
for a day meeting, and after 3 hours of the start of evening meeting of
Council, unless agreed to by the majority of Council present.

13.0 CLOSED SESSIONS

13.1 Notwithstanding section 11.4, a meeting may be closed to the public if the
subject matter being considered relates to items as listed in the Act and
must follow the procedures as outlined in the Acf.

13.2 All persons in attendance during closed sessions shall ensure that
confidential matters disclosed to them, and materials provided to them
during Closed Sessions or in advance of the meeting or session, are kept
confidential. Persons in attendance are encouraged to delete and/or
return confidential material to the Clerk. The obligation to keep information
confidential applies even if the member ceases to be a member.

14.0 SPECIAL MEETINGS

14.1 The Head of Council or Clerk may at any time summon a special meeting
of Council on 48 hours written notice to the Members of Council, or, upon
receipt of the petition of the majority of the Members of the Council.

14.2 The only business to be dealt with at a special meeting is that which is
listed.

15.0 EMERGENCYMEETINGS

15.1 ln circumstances determined to be an emergency or urgent situation, or
which could affect the health or well-being of the residents of the Township
of Mulmur, or if a State of Emergency is declared, or if so advised by a
Provincial Ministry, the Head of Council, Deputy Mayor or Clerk may at

20 of 34



his/her discretion call an emergency meeting of Council on less than 48
hours notice.

15.2 An emergency meeting shall only proceed with the consent of twothirds of
the members of Council, recorded in the minutes.

15.3 The Clerk shall make his/her best efforts to provide notice of the action as
soon as possible following the action and will present a report to Council
for ratification.

16.0 MEETING NOTICE

16.1 Where notice of intention to pass a by-law or notice of a public meeting is
required to be given, the Clerk shall cause such notice to be posted on the
Township's website. Additional notice by direct mail and/or publication may
be made at the discretion of Council or the Clerk. lnclusion within agenda
and meeting packages shall be considered as notice.

16.2 Such notice shall be given pursuant to applicable legislation or regulations,
and if not so prescribed, notice shall be given at least once, not less than
48 hours prior to the proposed notice of intention to pass a by-law or
notice of a public meeting being taken.

17.0 INCLEMENT WEATHER

17.1 For all Council and Committee meetings, should the Chair deem the
weather to be severe or an emergency, the meeting shall be held
electronically, cancelled and/or rescheduled for another time.

18.0 ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION

18.1 Electronic participation at meetings may be conducted, pursuant to
Section 238 of the Acf, and in accordance with this By-law.

18.2 Electronic participation will be permitted at all meetings unless specified by
the Clerk or Chair.

18.3 Members who wish to participate electronically, in accordance with this
section, shall make arrangements with the Clerk, no less than 24 hours in
advance of the meeting, or as soon as possible in the event of inclement
weather.

18.4 Members participating electronically, shall be entitled to vote as if they
were attending in person and participate electronically in a meeting that is
open or closed to the public.

21 of 34



18.5 At meetings with electronic participation by any member(s), votes may be
recorded to ensure transparency.

AGENDAS

19.0 The Clerk, at his/her discretion, shall have prepared from all
communications, correspondence and delegation requests, which are
received at least 7 calendar days prior to the date and time of the meeting
and not less than 48 hours before the hour appointed for the holding of a
regular meeting.

19.1 The following headings shall make up the Council agenda:

a) Call to Order
b) LandAcknowledgement
c) Approval of the Agenda
d) Minutes of the Previous Meeting
e) Discussion Arising out of the Minutes
f) Disclosure of Pecuniary lnterests
g) Public Question Period
h) Public Meetings
i) Deputations and Presentations
j) Public Works
k) Recreation
l) Treasury
m) Administration
n) Planning
o) Committee Minutes and Reports
p) lnformation ltems
q) Closed Session
r) ltems for Future Meetings
s) Notice of Motions
0 Passing of By-laws
u) Adjournment

19.2 The business of the meeting shall in all cases be taken up in the order in
which it stands upon the agenda unless othenryise decided by the majority
of members.

19.3 Any item which is not on the agenda as set but has been determined by
the Clerk to be of a nature which requires attention prior to the next
scheduled meeting, may be added by addendum at the discretion of the
Clerk.

19.4 Any items brought fonruard as a time sensitive issue by other means shall
require a majority vote of the members present to be added to the agenda.

22 of 34



19.5 Agendas and meeting packages will be made available at the Township
office as well as on the Township website.

MINUTES

20.O MINUTES

20.1 Minutes shall record

a) The place, date and time of the meeting and the time of adjournment;
b) The names of presiding officer, members and staff present;
c) The reading, if requested, correction and adoption of the minutes of

prior meetings;
d) Declarations of pecuniary interest;
e) All other proceedings, which will include motions, resolutions,

decisions and directions of the meeting without note or comment.
fl) Recorded votes taken by Council.

20.2 The Clerk or designate shall act as the recording secretary for Council and
Committee meetings, including Closed Sessions, statutory and planning
public meetings.

21.0 ADOPTION OF MINUTES

21.1 Draft minutes of each Council and/or Committee meeting shall be
presented to Council for approval and/or information at the next regular
meeting but will be made available in draft to the public as soon as
possible after the meeting and prior to adoption.

21.2

21.3

21.5

Members shall indicate any errors or omissions to be corrected by the
Clerk prior to adoption.

lf the minutes have been delivered to the Members then the minutes shall
not be read, and a resolution that the minutes be adopted shall be in order.

21.4 After the Council minutes have been approved by Council, they shall be
signed by the Head of Council and Clerk and/or designate(s).

Closed session minutes shall be brought fonruard for approval as soon as
practicable and be listed on the closed meeting agenda. Closed session
minutes shall be marked as confidential and shall remain confidential.

23 of 34



DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY INTEREST

22.0 Where a Member, either on his or her own behalf or while acting for, by,
with or through another, has any pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in

any matter and is present at a meeting of the Council or Committee which
the matter is the subject of consideration, the Member, shall govern
themselves in accordance with the Municipal Conflict of lnterest Act,
R.S.O. 1990, c. M.50.

221 Members shall prior to any consideration of the matter at the meeting,
determine whether they may have a pecuniary interest and disclose the
nature thereof verbally at the meeting.

22.2 The Member shall provide a written statement, in a form provided, of the
interest and its general nature to the Clerk. The Clerk will include the
statement in a registry maintained in accordance with the Municipal
Conflict of lnterest Acl R.S. O. 1990, c. M.50.

223 Members may declare pecuniary interest prior to any item being
addressed.

22.4 Members who have declared a pecuniary interest shall

a) not take part in the discussion of, or vote on any question in respect of
the matter;

b) not attempt in any way whether before, during or after the meeting to
influence the voting on the matter;

c) in addition to complying with the requirements of Municipal Conflict of
lnterest Acl R.S. O. 1990, c. M.50 shall forthwith leave the meeting or
part of the meeting during which the matter is under consideration.

22.5 Where the interest of a Member has not been disclosed by reason of the
Member's absence from a particular meeting, the Member shall disclose
the Member's interest and otherwise comply at the first meeting of the
Council or Committee, as the case may be, attended by the Member after
the particular meeting.

22.6 In the event that a member declares an interest during closed session, the
Member shall affirm their declaration of pecuniary interest immediately
after the motion to arise and the Clerk shall record the declaration in the
minutes.

221 A Member who has declared a pecuniary interest in a matter may move,
second and vote on the confirmatory by-law for the meeting in which the

24 of 34



interest was declared and adopting the minutes of the meeting in which
the interest was declared.

22.8 Where the number of members who, by reason of the Provisions of
Municipal Conflict of lnterest Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. M.50, are disabled from
participating in a meeting is such that at that meeting the remaining
members are not of sufficient number to constitute a quorum, then, despite
any other general or special Act, the remaining number of members shall
be deemed to constitute a quorum, provided such number is not less than
2.

PUBLIG QUESTION PERIOD

23.0 A maximum of 15 minutes will be set aside for Public Question Period,
with each questioner limited to 5 minutes.

23.1 When called upon by the Chair the questioner will identify themselves by
name and address the question to the Chair.

23.2 Questions will be responded to by the Chair who may also request a
response from staff. Response can be deferred or provided in writing
depending on the specifics of the question.

23.3 Questions shall only be permitted in respect of subject matters that deal
with municipal issues and are within the Municipality's jurisdiction, being
those that Council is responsible for, as outlines in the Acf.

DEPUTATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

24.0 DEPUTATIONS

24.1 A person wishing to appear as a deputation may address Council or a
Committee shall be limited in speaking to not more than 15 minutes except
that a delegation consisting of more than 5 persons shall be limited to 2
speakers, each limited to speaking not more than 10 minutes.

24.2 Deputations shall advise the Clerk in writing providing an outline of the
nature of the deputation, and relevant deputation materials at least 7 days
prior to the meeting.

24.3 The Clerk, at his/her discretion, will determine the date and time of the
deputation.

24.4 Deputations may only be about an item listed on the meeting agenda

25 of 34



24.5 Deputations shall only be permitted in respect of subject matters that deal
with municipal issues and are within the Municipality's jurisdiction, being
those that Council is responsible for, as outlined in the Act.

24.6 A person who is unable to attend may arrange for another person to
appear as a deputation on such person's behalf.

24.7 Members may ask questions of clarification

24.8 A maximum of 4 deputations at a day meeting not including Planning Act
public meetings shall be permitted. lnvitations for attendance at a Council
meeting by Council will be included in the maximum number of
deputations.

24.9 Each issue and/or deputation will be allowed one meeting presentation to
the Council or Committee with a period of 6 months lapsing before the
issue can be raised again. An exception may be granted at the discretion
of the Clerk, if substantially new and/or substantially significant information
is provided.

24.10 The Chair may shorten the time of any deputation, any questions of a
delegate, or debate during a deputation for disorder or any other breach of
this by-law.

25.0 PRESENTATIONS

25.1 A person of group wishing to make a Presentation to Council shall provide
the Clerk or designate with written notice no later than fourteen (14) days
prior to the meeting. Such request shall state the specific nature of the
matter to be presented. The presentation material must be provided
fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting for inclusion in the package.

25.2 Presentations and Ceremonial Presentations shall only be permitted in
respect of subject matters that deal with municipal issues and are within
Municipality's jurisdiction, being those that Council is responsible for as
outlined in the Act.

25.3 Presentations and Ceremonial Presentations at the Council meeting shall
be limited to 15 minutes. The duration of a presentation may be extended
by majority vote specifying the additional time. Such question shall be
decided by Council without debate.

25.4 Presenters may only present once every twelve (12) months on the same
topic, or at the discretion of Council or the Clerk.

25.5 A maximum of two (2) presentations per meeting, not including
Ceremonial Presentations, will be scheduled by the Clerk.

26 of 34



25.6 lmmediately following a presentation, the Chair will determine if further
action is required and direct staff to prepare a report for consideration by
Council. lf no report is required, presentations will be noted and filed.

BY.LAWS

26.0 Generally, all by-laws shall be given first, second and third reading at one
meeting in a single motion.

26.1 Every by-law passed by Council shall

a) be signed by the Head of Council and Clerk, or their deputies;
b) Be sealed with the Municipal seal; and
c) lndicate the date of passage.

26.2 Every by-law when introduced shall be in typewritten form and shall
contain no blanks except such as may be required to conform to accepted
procedure or to comply with provisions of any Act and shall be complete
except for the number and date thereof.

26.3 The Clerk or designate is hereby authorized to make such minor deletions,
additions, or other changes in form to any by-law before same is signed
and sealed, for the purpose of ensuring correct and complete
implementation of the actions of Council forming the subject matter of the
by-law and members shall be advised by the Clerk of such changes by
written notice.

MOTIONS AND VOTING

27.O MOVED AND SECONDED

27.1 All motions shall be moved and seconded. The Clerk or designate may be
asked to repeat the motion in question.

27.2 The Chair may vacate the chair in order to move or second a motion and
shall resume the chair following the vote of the matter.

27.3 All motions may be supported or opposed by the mover and seconder

28.0 SEVERABILIry OF MOTION

28.1 Upon the request of any member, and when the Chair is satisfied that a
motion under consideration contains distinct proposals, the vote upon
each proposal shall be taken separately.

27 of 34



29.0 SECONDARY MOTIONS

29.1 The following matters and motions are not debatable may be introduced
without notice and without leave, except as otherwise provided by the
Rules of Procedure:

a) a point of order or privilege;
b) to move to call the vote;
c) to move to Committee of the Whole;
d) to extend the time of the meeting; or
e) to adjourn.

29.2 The following matters and motions are debateable may be introduced
without notice and without leave, except as otherwise provided by the
Rules of Procedure:

a) to amend;
b) to suspend the Rules of Procedure;
c) to commit or refer to a specific body;
d) defer or to postpone indefinitely;
e) any other procedural motion.

29.3 Procedural motions shall be considered immediately upon receipt and
shall have precedence.

30.O MOTION TO RECONSIDER

30.1 lf a matter has been previously considered, it shall not be reconsidered by
such body within six (6) months after the meeting at which it was originally
considered, without the consent of at least two-thirds of the members
present.

30.2 "Considered" shall mean those matters for which the members of a
meeting have decided to act or not act upon and shall more include the
mere receipt of information where no action has been sought or taken.

30.3 A motion to reconsider must be moved by a member of the prevailing side
when the matter was first considered.

30.4 A motion to reconsider on a decided matter of Council, shall be brought
fonruard as a Notice of Motion.

31.0 MOTION TO AMEND

31.1 Motions may be amended verbally prior to the Calling for the Vote if a
quorum of the members agree to the amendment.

28 of 34



31.2 Amendments shall be relevant and germane to the principle of the report
or motion under consideration.

31.3 Only one amending motion shall be considered at any one time

32.0 NOTTCE OF MOTION

32J Members intending to bring fonruard a motion for Council consideration
must provide notice at the preceding meeting.

32.2 Such notice shall contain a brief summary of the motion subject

32.3 Final wording of the motion for Council consideration shall be provided to
the Clerk or designate at least one week in advance of the meeting at
which the motion is to be considered.

32.4 The Chair, at their discretion, may move to consider the Notice of Motion
immediately which unanimous consent of all Council members in

attendance.

33.0 CALL THE VOTE

33.1 A motion to call the vote shall preclude all further amendments of the
question. When resolved in the affirmative, the Chair shall read the motion
and all amendments thereto without further debate or amendment.

33.2 Such motion cannot be moved by a member who has already debated the
question.

34.0 VOTING PROCEDURE

34.1 Each Member present and voting shall announce or indicate his/her vote
openly and individually. No vote shall be taken by ballot or by any other
method of secret voting.

34.2 Every Member present shall vote unless prohibited by statute, in which
case it shall be so recorded.

34.3 A failure to vote or abstention by a member who is present at the meeting
at the time of the vote and who is qualified to vote shall be deemed to be a
negative vote.

34.4 After a motion is called to vote, by the Chair, no Member shall speak to the
question, nor shall any other motion be made until after the vote is taken
and the result has been declared.

29 of 34



34.5 When the Chair calls for the vote, each Member shall occupy his/her seat
and shall remain in his/her place until the result of the vote has been
declared by the Chair, and during such time no Member shall walk across
the room to speak to any other Member or make any noise or disturbance.

34.6 The manner of determining the decision of the Council on a motion shall
be at the discretion of the Chair and may it be by voice, show of hands,
standing or othenruise.

34.7 Any motions on which there is a tie vote shall be deemed to be lost, except
where otheruvise provided by any Act.

35.0 RECORDED VOTES

35.1 A request by a member for a recorded vote may be made immediately
prior or immediately thereafter the taking of the vote.

35.2 Upon request for a recorded vote, the Clerk shall call the names and
record the votes in the following order:

the requestor shall be called first;
to be followed by the next Councillor in alphabetical order;
with the Deputy Mayor and Mayor voting second last and last;

if the requester is the Mayor of Deputy Mayor, they shall vote first

35.3 The Clerk shall announce the results

35.4 An all-encompassing request for recorded votes may be made at any time
where members are participating electronically and shall apply to the
whole or remainder of the meeting to ensure proper technology is enabled
to make such participation possible. All-encompassing record of votes will
occur in alphabetical order, except that the Deputy Mayor and Mayor shall
vote second last and last respectively.

RULES OF DEBATE

36.0 RULES OF DEBATE

36.1 To address Council, every member shall wait to be recognized by the
Chair before speaking.

36.2 When a Member is speaking no other Member shall pass between him/her
and the Chair, or interrupt him/her, except to raise a point of order or
personal privilege.

a)
b)
c)
d)

30 of 34



36.3 Any member, taken in order of acknowledgement, may require the
question or motion under discussion to be read at any time during the
debate, but only after each member has spoken on the question or motion
at least once, but not so as to interrupt a Member while speaking.

37.O POINTS OF ORDER

37.1 A member may interrupt the person who has the floor to raise a point of
order when such member feels that there has been a deviation or
departure from the rules of procedure.

37.2 Upon hearing such point of order, the ruling of the Chair shall be final

37.3 The member who called the point of order may appeal the decision of the
Chair to Council with the motion "that the decision of the Chair be
sustained" which shall be decided by a majority vote of the members
present without debate.

38.0 POINT OF PRIVILEGE

38.1 A member may rise at any time on a point of personal privilege where
such member feels that personal integrity or the integrity of the Council
has been impugned by another member.

38.2 Upon hearing such point of privilege, the ruling of the Chair shall be final

38.3 The member who called the point of privilege may appeal the decision of
the Chair to Council with the motion "that the decision of the Chair be
sustained" which shall be decided by a majority vote of the members
present without debate.

38.4 Where the Chair recognizes that a breach of privilege has taken place, the
Chair shall cause the offending member to apologize, and failing such
apology shall require such member to vacate for the duration of the
meeting.

GOMMITTEES

39.0 INTERNALCOMMITTEES

39.1 Council shall, determine the appropriate Committees, terms of reference,
mandates, honorariums and their memberships.

39.2 Committees shall sit for the term of Council unless dissolved by Council.

39.3 Public members are expected to be residents, property owners, and/or

31 of 34



39.4

39.5

39.6

business owners in the Township of Mulmur.

Township staff are not eligible to sit as public members.

Public members shall provide a clean volunteer criminal records check.

All Committee members will be appointed by motion or by-law.

39.7 Council members appointed to the Committees, shall sit for two (2) years,
after which Council will determine whether new members of Councilwill be
appointed.

39.8 All items considered by a Committees shall be forwarded to the Council in
the form of Committee minutes.

40.O EXTERNAL BOARDS AND COMMITTEES

40.1 Council representation on all external boards and committees for whom
appointments are sought or required shall be at the discretion of Council
and in accordance with the Acf.

40.2 Members will be appointed by motion or by-law

40.3 Appointed members shall sit for two (2) years, after which Council will
determine whether new members of Council will be appointed.

42.0 COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

41.1 When members consider a subject which it does not wish to refer to a
committee, and yet where the subject matter is not well digested and put
into proper form for its definite action, or when, for any other reason, it is
desirable for the assembly to consider a subject with all the freedom of an
ordinary committee, matters may be referred to the Committee of the
Whole.

41.2 lf the Committee or Council do not wish to schedule a meeting of
Committee of a Whole and wish to consider the question at once, a motion
is required, "That we go into committee of the whole to consider (subject)".

41.3 lf a time limit has been set, Committee of the Whole does not have the
power, even by unanimous consent, to extend the time.

41.4 While sitting as a Committee of the Whole, only matters referred to it may
be discussed. Unrelated motions are out of order.

32 of 34



41.5 Committee of a Whole can debate, consider amendments and make
recommendation.

41.6 Committee of a Whole cannot adjourn, order recorded votes, or refer the
subject matter to another committee.

41.7 To conclude its proceedings, or end the debate a motion is required "that
the committee rise and report," specifying the result of its proceedings,
amendments and recommendations, which are subject to a confirming
vote.

41.8 The secretary does not record in the minutes the proceedings of the
committee, but shall keep a memorandum of the proceedings for its use.

42.0 EX OFFICTO

42.1 The Head of Council is an ex officio member of every Committee

42.2 Where a Committee is established by reference to a particular number of
members without specifically providing for the members of the Head of
Council, such number is automatically increased by one, being the Head
of Council.

42.3 The Head of Council may vote and othenryise participate in the business of
the Committee without any restriction on the same basis as any other
member.

OTHER MATTERS

43.0 AMENDMENT

43.1 ln all matters and under all circumstances the members shall be guided by
and shall have regard to the all-other existing legislation including but not
limited to the Act and Municipal Conflict of lnterest Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.
M.50.

43.2 Following a regular or new election, the Clerk shall provide each member
of Council with a copy of this By-Law, including any amendments thereto.

44.0 CONFLTCT

44.1 ln the event of any conflict between this By-Law and any statute, the
provisions of the statute prevail.

44.2 ln the event of any conflict between any provisions of this by-law and any
other by-law hereto are passed; the provisions of this by-law shall prevail.

33 of 34



45.0 REPEAL

45.1 That By-Law No. 04-2022, is hereby repealed

46.0 EFFECTIVE DATE

46.1 This By-Law shall become effective upon the date of the enactment.

PASSED on this 6th day of JULY 2022

{w*(
ET HORNER, MAYOR TRACEY ATKINSON, CLERK

(t

34 of 34


	3. Jan 30 2023 MMFD AGENDA
	4. Dec 20 2022 MMFD DRAFT MINUTES
	6. a) AP Operating 2022
	6. a) AP Operating 2023
	6. b) MM Fire 2023 budget
	8. a) FMPFSC Certifcation Grant Award Letter
	8. b) No. 37-2022 Procedural By-law

	Return to Agenda: 


